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Name: MADINGLEY HALL

County: Cambridgeshire

District: South Cambridgeshire (District Authority)

Parish: Madingley

label.localisation: Latitude: 52.225647

Longitude: 0.036711686

National Grid Reference: TL 39211 60559

Map: Download a full scale map (PDF)

label.overview: Heritage Category: Park and Garden

Grade: II

List Entry Number: 1000627

Date first listed: 16-Jan-1985

Details

A C16 manor house with formal gardens laid out at the beginning of the C20, surrounded by pleasure grounds and park

landscaped by Lancelot Brown in 1756.

HISTORIC DEVELOPMENT

Sir John Hynde acquired the Madingley estate in 1543, and in doing so became the owner of almost all the land in the parish.

He began to build a new Hall, beginning with the south and main east ranges which he surrounded with a hunting park. His son

Sir Francis Hynde completed the task, adding the north range and the long gallery by the end of the century. The Hyndes owned

Madingley until 1647 when Jane, the sole heiress, married Sir John Cotton, baronet, of Landwade and they made Madingley

their family seat. Sir John died in 1689 and Jane in 1692, to be succeeded by their son Sir John Hynde, the second baronet, who

resided at Madingley until his death in 1713. Sometime during this period elaborate formal gardens were constructed around the

Hall, either by Lady Jane or her son. These may be recorded by Kip in an engraving published in 1710 (Cambridge University).

Sir John's son, the third baronet, took the name Hynde-Cotton and during the 1720s he was responsible for making major

additions and alterations to the Hall. In 1756, his son, also Sir John Hynde-Cotton, commissioned Lancelot Brown (1716-83)

to modernise the landscape, at which time the formal gardens were removed and a naturalistic parkland setting created for the

Hall which was given an informal pleasure ground. The estate remained with the family until 1858, when Sir St Vincent Cotton,

burdened with gambling debts, transferred his Madingley lands to his two sisters Maria and Philadelphia. The sisters divided

the estate in 1859. Maria, who was married to Sir Richard King, obtained the portion which included the Hall with its park

and associated farmland in Madingley and in 1861 she rented the Hall to Queen Victoria for the Prince of Wales whilst he was

at Cambridge University. On her death in 1871 the Hall and land were sold to Henry Hurrell of Harleston who demolished

part of the north wing. His son William sold it in 1905 to Col Thomas Walter Harding, at which time a substantial restoration

and refurbishment programme took place and new formal gardens were laid out on the north front, partly overlaying Brown's

pleasure ground. Col Harding died in 1927 and his son and heir, Walter Ambrose Heath Harding, in 1942. The estate was sold

to the University of Cambridge in 1948 in whose hands it remains (1999).

DESCRIPTION



Inventory of Gardens and Designed Landscapes of England
Inventory of Great Britain

MADINGLEY HALL

ENIEJP_J441 – 03/07/2024 Page 3

LOCATION, AREA, BOUNDARIES, LANDFORM, SETTING Madingley Hall lies in a rural setting on the west side of

Madingley village which is situated c 5km west of Cambridge. The registered site covers c 80ha, bounded to the east by the

village, to the north-east by Drayton Road, and to the west and south by farmland. Perimeter belts enclose the park on all sides

apart from an open view east over the village towards Cambridge. A drain runs north/south through the middle of the site,

passing c 200m to the west of the Hall which also sits in the centre of the park. The gently undulating ground falls generally

towards the east, to the lake and village on the east boundary.

ENTRANCES AND APPROACHES Madingley Hall is approached from the village on the eastern boundary, through elaborate

wrought-iron gates hung on rusticated red-brick piers (c 1908, listed grade II) beside a brick and thatch two-storey lodge (listed

grade II), also built in c 1908 by Col Harding. The drive passes over a sham bridge of mid C18 date (listed grade II) beside

the south end of the lake, both of these features being associated with the works carried out by Lancelot Brown in 1756. To

the south of the drive, just beyond the bridge (outside the area here registered) is the church of St Mary Magdalen (listed grade

II*), the C12 parish church. The approach to the Hall carries on west in a gentle sweep to the gravelled east front forecourt

and branches to the stable block on the south side of the courtyard. The layout of this drive dates from the Brown period when

village buildings between the church and the garden wall were demolished to make way for the creation of the landscape park.

PRINCIPAL BUILDING Madingley Hall (listed grade I) is a large mansion house of clunch and red brick, patterned with

burnt-brick diaper work and limestone dressings under parapetted, tiled roofs. It sits in the centre of the registered site, facing

east towards the village and looks beyond it towards the city of Cambridge. It has an asymmetrical east front with corner towers

to north and south. The more balanced north front faces onto the gardens and has a late C20 wing on the north-west corner. The

south front faces towards the walled garden. Construction of the Hall was started in 1543 by Sir John Hynde and completed

by his son Sir Francis in the 1590s. It has undergone numerous alterations and additions in every subsequent century, up to the

late C20 when the University of Cambridge added the north-west tower wing.

Lying beyond the south front is the stable courtyard, entered from the east through an elaborate red-brick and limestone archway

(listed grade II*) decorated with panelled mouldings and niches. The arch came from the Old Schools, Cambridge and was

brought to Madingley by Sir John Hynde-Cotton in 1758. The stable courtyard, of C18 origin, was rebuilt in 1951 but the

central hexagonal clock cupola of 1755 was incorporated in the north range. The coach house was rebuilt in 1975 as a library.

GARDENS AND PLEASURE GROUNDS The gardens lie mainly to the north and south of the Hall, with open parkland

running up to the east front courtyard and woodland enclosing the gardens to the west. The main garden front faces north

and includes a late C16 loggia, now (1999) blocked up. Below this is a small niche holding a statue of Buddha overlooking

a semicircular pool of early C20 origin. The wide balustraded gravel terrace faces onto a croquet lawn enclosed by clipped

yew hedges and including an early C20 octagonal pool at one end. To the west of the croquet lawn is a small topiary garden

surrounded by yew and beech hedges. The main axis of the garden faces north across the croquet lawn, through a gap in the

yew hedge along an avenue of clipped yew bottles which runs through the pleasure grounds to the perimeter fence where the

vista is continued across the park. A perimeter gravel walk runs round the pleasure grounds which were laid out by Brown in

1756 and contain some mature cedars of mid C19 origin. The formal elements of the north garden were added by Col Harding

at the beginning of the C20, at which time he lowered the north lawns, partly obscuring some of the Brown design. The gravel

path runs west and turns south around the Hall to the west front where a small area of lawn with a Victorian game store is

enclosed by woodland.

Beyond the stable court on the south front lie the walled gardens which are divided into three compartments, two of which are

planted as ornamental gardens (see below).

PARK The park at Madingley is all laid to grass, surrounded by perimeter plantations but now (1999) with few parkland trees.

To the east of the Hall is an open park bordered to north and south by lines of trees which focus the view to the small (c 1ha)

lake with boathouse. The village road on the east side of the lake is sunk to allow the view to continue beyond it to a further area

of parkland enclosed by trees. This scheme was laid out in the mid C18 as the main element in the design by Lancelot Brown.

The remainder of the park has a more agricultural character, partly divided into fields and with few parkland trees. There is

a dense area of woodland on the slope between the Hall and a drain to the west, and another block of woodland to the south
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which encloses a second small pond, on the south bank of which stands a white carrera marble statue of Albert, Prince Consort

(listed grade II) by J H Foley, moved to this site from the Fitzwilliam Museum in 1956. A hollow-way, marking the route of

the old village street prior to its removal in the mid C18, is visible in the park on the west side of the church.

KITCHEN GARDEN The walled gardens lie immediately to the south of the stable courtyard, entered from there by a small

flight of steps. The first compartment is laid to lawn with mixed borders along the boundary walls. It is divided from the second

compartment by a hazel arbour walk which was planted in the early to mid C19 (not shown on Enclosure map of 1811 but present

by Tithe map of 1849). The second compartment has been developed by the University since the 1970s as a plantsman's garden,

divided into a number of different garden areas. The third compartment currently contains tennis courts and car parking (1999).
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Legal

This garden or other land is registered under the Historic Buildings and Ancient Monuments Act 1953 within the Register of

Historic Parks and Gardens by Historic England for its special historic interest.


